I. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER. 

A. Petitioner Anatole Kim asks this Court to accept review of the 

decision terminating review designated in Part II, a copy of which is 

Appendix A and is denoted as "Slip Op," or "Decision". 

II. COURT OF APPEALS DECISION. 

On January 31, 2014, Division III affirmed the Yakima Superior 

Court's grant of relocation of the two teen-age children for the start 

of their ih and 1oth grade years from Yakima, where they were 

raised and the only place they had gone to school, to Los Angeles, an 

enormous city 1,000 miles away where they would not live near any 

family or friends, would have extremely limited visitation with their 

father during the school year, and would have a largely absent single 

parent without assistance who was re-engaging into a demanding 

professional career; they would essentially go from the familiar 

boundaries and activities of Yakima to being on their own in Los 

Angeles. Critically, they would also be without their usual sports 

and art and dance and scout activities and friends. All this without 

any finding by the trial court that the children would be benefited in 

any way by the relocation; and without the trial court actually 

engaging in the required statutory balancing. The core of the 

Decision is that, contrary to the express terms of the statute, the 

relocating residential parent has an irrebuttable presumption the 

desired move will benefit the children. 
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III. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW. 

A. Division III's Decision significantly changed the relocation 

standards beyond what the Legislature provided for in the 

relocation addition to the Parenting Act in a way that is 

inconsistent with the Legislature's directives and which 

ultimately is not good for the children at issue by failing to 

promote their best interests or to protect them from harm. 

The Decision sanctions the trial court's deviation from the 

statutory factors in RCW 26.09.520, and also sanctions the 

trial court's deviation from the tests specified in In re 

Marriage of Horner, 151 Wn.2d 884, 93 P.3d 124 (2004) (see 

Opening Brief, pp. 17 - 40, esp. pp. 21 - 26). Review should 

be granted because the published decision conflicts with 

Horner, the statute, and affects all future children and non

residential parents when the primary residential parent seeks 

relocation. RAP 13.4(b)(1), (3) and (4). 

B. The Court of Appeals dramatically expanded the standard for 

allowing relocation of children beyond that provided for in 

the relocation statute, and beyond that permitted by the 

underlying purposes of the Parenting Act. It provides as a 

practical matter that if a primary residential parent presents to 

the trial court that the proposed relocation is to that parent's 

benefit then, automatically, it is to the children's benefit and 
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relocation is to be allowed, thus either eliminating the 11 

factors, or allowing the presumption to trump the 11 factors 

without even engaging in the statutorily-required weighing 

process. The Decision's effect makes it virtually impossible 

for a parent to oppose relocation by a primary residential 

parent, in conflict with the express terms of the RCW 

26.09.520, Marriage of Horner, and the overall Parenting Act 

which requires decisions in the best interests of the child. 

This case should be reviewed because there is a substantial 

public interest in whether the carefully crafted relocation 

statute, and its placement within the Parenting Act with its 

underlying requirement of promoting the best interests of the 

children, may be eviscerated by the trial and intermediate 

appellate courts. These factors favor review pursuant to RAP 

13.4(b)(1), (3), and (4). 

C. Division III's refusal to follow the relocation statute's 

requirements of balancing the benefits and harms to the 

children at issue with the benefits to the relocating parent 

remove the relocation decision from its protection against 

being a constitutional abridgment of the non-residential, fit 

parent's rights to raise their children, by essentially removing 

the non-residential parent from regular daily or weekly 

contact where they are relocated over 1,000 miles away to 
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new schools where they know no other children or 

classmates. This supports review under RAP 13 .4(b) (3 ). 

D. Division III upheld the trial court's failure to comply with the 

statutory requirement to consider the relocation factors 

against the facts of the case by enunciating a new standard of 

"presumption" that cannot be overcome by the facts of the 

case and which, therefore, in effect nullified the Relocation 

Act and the requirements established by the Legislature, also 

violating the separation of powers by creating a new test. It 

misapplied the Marriage of Horner decision, demonstrating 

the lack of proper understanding by the appellate and trial 

courts on this issue. Should review be granted pursuant to 

RAP 13 .4(b )( 1) since the lower courts seem to misunderstand 

Horner, this Court has not addressed relocation since Horner 

in 2004, and Horner itself did not involve a fully contested 

appeal of the underlying, critical issues but was, in fact, moot 

as the father in that case did not file any briefs. See Marriage 

of Horner, 151 Wn.2d at 898-99 (Sanders, J. dissenting), 

discussed in Opening Brief, p. 24, fn. 15. An issue of this 

importance deserves full briefing and consideration from all 

parties and perspectives. 

E. Petitioner requests that review include review of the fee 

award on appeal where the appeal was not frivolous and the 
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trial court found that both parties could pay for their own fees 

given the overall marital estate that was divided. 

F. Petitioner also requests review include the other issues he 

raised below, including the disproportionate property division 

which failed to compensate him for contributions to 

Respondent's professional degree and training, required by 

Marriage of Washburn, 101 Wn.2d 168, 677 P.2d 152 (1984), 

Respondent's younger age, longer future work life, and 

higher future earning potential; and the trial court's 

prevention of his applying maintenance income to his tax 

deductions for Jan- August 2012, contrary to his rights under 

the federal tax code rights. 

IV. STATEMENT OF THE CASE. 

A. Introduction. 

This case asks the Court to determine: can a divorcing parent 

granted primary residential status make a series of unilateral 

decisions that "requires" relocation outside the city of the two minor, 

teenage children's lifelong upbringing and schooling based solely on 

the parent's own desires or preferences, when such a move was not 

in the best interests of the children; was deemed harmful to the 

children by the neutral guardian ad litem and court-appointed 

forensic child psychiatrist; and cannot be shown to provide any 

benefit to the children? 
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Specifically, does Washington Law permit a residential 

parent to relocate simply because he or she wants to resume a career 

elsewhere than where the teen-age children have been raised? Or if 

out of town re-training is desired or required for one year, must the 

trial court re-engage in an examination under the Relocation and 

Parenting Acts to determine whether the statutes require a return to 

the children's home town where the re-trained parent is eligible for 

numerous job opportunities in that area that would permit the 

children to return to the lives, other parent, and extended family they 

had been forced to leave for one year? 

B. Basic Facts of the Relocation Case. 1 

In this relocation case of two physician parents, the mother, 

Respondent Betsy Kim, wanted out of the 20-year marriage, and out 

of Yakima. It is Petitioner Anatole Kim's position that the record 

shows that Betsy did not take the children's interests into account 

but made the decision to restart her career in only Los Angeles even 

though she could have taken steps to pursue options that would have 

allowed the children to remain in Yakima with her while she got re

credentialed through programs sponsored through either the 

1 Petitioner will not belabor and re-argue the facts from below, or the law by repeating 
the Court of Appeals briefs, which put the matter in full context. Suffice it to say that 
Petitioner disagrees with the Court of Appeals' characterization of the facts and evidence 
as presented in the Slip Op., and believes they are more accurately set out in the Opening 
and Reply briefs, as is the law. The Court is directed to them, and to the record. One 
example stands out, where the Decision states the guardian ad litem recommended 
primary custody for Betsy. In fact, by the end of trial the GAL's recommendation was 
changed to joint custody. See CP 403-05 (confidential); Opening Brief, pp. 14-16. 
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University of Washington or the University of Oregon; but she never 

explored them. Betsy could have done that handily (demonstrated 

by job opportunities discussed infra) without totally disrupting the 

children and destroying the lives they had known since infancy. 

Betsy's actions, as sanctioned by the trial and appellate courts, 

essentially erased the children as sentient, important, primary 

humans in this equation - quite the opposite of the Legislature's 

intent when enacting the Relocation Act. The Act explicitly rejected 

the courts' efforts to do just that, as had been permitted by Marriage 

of Littlefield, 133 Wn.2d 39, 940 P.2d 1362 (1997), superseded in 

part by statute, Laws of2000, Ch. 21, § 1, and Marriage ofPape, 

139 Wn.2d 694, 989 P.2d 1120 (1999). See Opening Brief, pp. 

23-26. 

As for this case, although relocation has occurred, genume 

relief can be afforded by review and reversal, which would benefit 

those who are supposed to be the primary concern of the courts: the 

children. Review could be expedited, the relocation reversed, and the 

case remanded once Betsy completes her fellowship in Los Angeles 

in July since she would then be qualified for one of the many local 

pathology opportunities she could seek that are either in or within 

commuting distance of Yakima, permitting the children to return to 

their hometown and father, paternal grandmother, friends, activities, 

and schools for the 11th and gth grades. 
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There are many pathology jobs available in the greater 

Yakima/Central Basin area, and throughout the Northwest, which 

would provide professional work for Betsy while letting her live in 

or near Yakima so the children could be re-integrated with the life 

they have known since infants.2 Many are locum tenens postions, 

which often lead to permanent positions, and which facilitate 

licensing issues. They are a typical avenue for re-entering or re

locating one's medical practice. They are plentiful. Others are 

openings as some people move on to different hospitals or practices, 

or different parts of the country, or into research from clinical work. 

The point is that there are ample pathology positions in or 

near Yakima that would allow Betsy to continue her professional re

integration while also letting the children regain their childhood 

friends, activities, and schools, and social development. More 

important, such a return would permit the children to re-engage more 

regularly with their father Anatole, and their maternal grandmother 

who has been a central figure in their lives since they were infants. 

2 See, e.g., http://www.doccafe.com/jobs/physician/pathology/503 I 82/great-pathology
job-opportunity-with-a-national-clinical-research-company.html (Soliant Health 
pathology job for research company seeking Washington physicians able to work a 
flexible schedule for 12-month period); http://www.Jocumtenens.com/pathology
jobs/wa!locum-tenens/job-597689 (locum tenens pathology work with Soliant Health in 
WA); http://www.doccafe.com/jobs/physician/pathology/34 I 649/boise-idaho (locum 
tenens position with Pacific Companies in Boise Idaho on "ongoing" basis, with 
"Travel, Overnight accommodations and Malpractice are all paid." Listing updated 
2/06/2014 ); http://www .doccafe.corn/specialties/ I /physician/3 53/pathology-jobs.html 
(five pages of pathology listings around the country with AMN Healthcare company, 
locum tenens staffing). Emphasis added. 
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What is required by the statutes is, at a basic level, that the 

children are put first. They cannot simply be dragged along as a 

necessary afterthought, as occurred here. All the statutory factors 

must be applied and balanced in favor of the children; as must the 

cultural factors required by the parenting plan statute, 3 which the 

trial court ignored in both contexts. The analysis applied by the trial 

judge was: of course they will be harmed, it's relocation; but they 

will get over it. They are kids, good kids who have had two good 

parents. They will survive without too much detriment. 

But that approach hardly meets the "best interests" standard, 

much less constitutes the balancing of interest factors required by 

RCW 26.09.520. 

Betsy had given up her part-time pathology practice after the 

birth of their second child because she decided she wanted to be a 

stay-at-home mom. This precluded an academic career for Anatole, 

but he went to work in cardiology, providing for the entire family. 

They moved to Yakima shortly thereafter and Anatole's long hours 

supported the family while Betsy focused on the three kids. 

Late in the 25-year marriage, Betsy decided she wanted a 

divorce (partly culture clash ignored by the trial court)4 when the 

3 See RCW 26.09.184(3) and Opening Brief at 34-38. 
4 Betsy is a third generation Japanese-American; Anatole is first generation Korean
American. Both they and their parents very high performing: Brown and Yale undergrad, 
and Michigan Brown medical schools for Betsy and Anatole, respectively; their parents 
who were physicians and professors. 
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boys were in 7th and 1Oth grades, their daughter in 4th. It took a 

while for trial and Betsy looked for pathology fellowships - but only 

in the LA area, where she had kept up her license, never seeking 

opportunity or reciprocity in Washington, despite graduating from a 

top-ten medical school. While the Los Angeles area is where her 

family was from, she did not go anywhere near any of them. The 

two teen-age kids under 18 are now in 7th and 1Oth grades in schools 

with total strangers and a mom who works long hours as a fellow re

learning her field, and without time to run them to the myriad 

activities they had been plugged into their entire lives; they are 

effectively on their own in LA, nowhere near any relatives. 

Betsy never sought reciprocity for a license in Washington, 

nor a training program in Seattle, Portland, or the Tri-Cities, of any 

sort that would allow her to get re-geared professionally while 

maintaining stability for the kids. 5 The undisputed evidence is that it 

was not a move that was in any interest of the kids, harming them by 

taking away their many developmental activities: scouting, tennis 

and piano for LK; art, ballet, and piano for CK. These activities do 

not just develop "skills" and friends, they also develop character and 

leadership abilities. The relocation made no provision for these 

genuine needs of the children. Their needs were an afterthought. 

5 The Decision incorrectly states Betsy was not eligible for a Washington medical license, 
as reciprocity is readily obtained. See Opening Brief, p. 13, fn.3. The point is, Betsy 
never applied, so was never rejected. 
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Despite the statute that is supposed to require the trial judge 

to "balance" the benefits to the moving parent with the benefits or 

detriments or harms to the children, and which is phrased in terms of 

whether the children will be allowed to relocate, the decision was 

made by the trial judge, and affirmed by the Court of Appeals in 

Spokane, based on the "presumption" they all found conclusive that 

Betsy would only act in the best interests of the children; so, this 

move must be okay. Except that, in this case, the guardian ad litem 

recommended against the relocation, it saying it would be harmful to 

the children. So did the court-appointed forensic psychiatrist. There 

is no evidence of any benefit to the children from the move. 

Nevertheless, the trial judge chose to disregard those opinions 

which were based on facts and their observations. The appellate 

court said, in effect -that's okay, the trial judge is entitled to ignore 

that evidence if he wants, and he stated each of the statutory factors, 

albeit he did not in fact balance them. There was no genuine 

exercise of discretion in the consideration of the statutory factors. 

But as a practical matter, following the law now can still do 

much good in this case, as well as provide needed guidance 

throughout the state. When Betsy's fellowship is over in LA in July, 

since there are plenty of pathology positions either in Yakima or 

easy commuting distance from there, she and the kids should return 

so the children can resume their friendships and activities and 
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schools in Yakima after being gone only one school year (like a year 

abroad), see their dad more than 2-3 times per quarter, and resume 

their regular relationship with their paternal grandmother, a board 

certified psychiatrist who moved to Yakima to help raise the 

children from infancy. After all, one of the underlying goals of the 

Parenting Act is to foster the continuing relationship with both 

parents. RCW 26.09.002.6 That is hard to do when one moves 

1 ,000 miles away. 

There is no proper reason the children should suffer the 

dislocation from their home town for more than one year. If 

promptly corrected by reversal and remand. This year can be more 

like a "year abroad" to a dramatically different setting and routine, 

rescued by the return to the familiar and the friends. On remand, the 

trial court could be directed to determine living arrangements so the 

children can return to their schools and friends and activities. 

6 The statute states: "the state recognizes the fundamental importance of the parent-child 
relationship to the welfare of the child, and that the relationship between the child and 
each parent should be fostered unless inconsistent with the child's best interests. 
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V. ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE ACCEPTED. 

A. This Court Should Accept Review To Definitively Address 
Whether the Statutory Factors Under the Relocation Act 
Must In Fact Be Addressed and Balanced, or Whether 
They are Trumped by the New Standard Stated by 
Division III: The Presumption That the Custodial 
Parent's Proposed Move Will Benefit the Children is 
Conclusive and Cannot be Overcome with Facts 
Demonstrating There are No Benefits to the Children, but 
Only Severe Harm to Them. 

If facts and undisputed evidence cannot overcome the 

presumption that the relocating parent is allowed to take the children 

where they want to go, then there is no point to the Act and its 

statutory factors which nominally permit the non-relocating parent to 

challenge the presumption that the relocation is in the children's best 

interests. By ruling on this record that the facts do not overcome the 

presumption that the residential parent is acting in the children's best 

interests, the Decision nullified the Relocation Act, also violating the 

constitutional rights at risk the statute is designed to protect. See 

Opening Brief, pp. 26-27. 

Review should be granted per RAP 13.4(b)(l), (3), and (4). 
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B. The Point of the Statutory Factors is to Balance the 
Harms and Benefits of the Residential Parent Who Wants 
to Relocate With Those of the Children, Because the 
Focus is on the Children; Whether They Should be 
Allowed to Relocate Because A Move Will Benefit Them. 
The Residential Parent Does Not Get a Free Pass Simply 
Because They Want to Leave The Area When That Move: 
1) Has No Benefit to the Children; or 2) Is Harmful to the 
Children. Relocation for One Year to Obtain Training 
That Allows the Residential Parent to Secure Appropriate 
Professional Employment in the Children's Home Town 
May be Appropriate for That Training Period, if Not 
Harmful to the Children. 

As noted, there are many pathology positions available in the 

greater Yakima/Central Basin area, and throughout the Northwest, 

which would provide professional work for the new re-trained Betsy 

while letting her live in or near Yakima so the children could be re

integrated with the life they have known since infants. 7 The locum 

tenens positions can both facilitate immediate licensing and lead to 

permanent employment positions. !d. 

The point is, genuine relief by the appellate court enforcing 

the statute is both possible and realistic because there are ample 

pathology positions that would allow Betsy to continue her 

professional re-integration and career while also permitting the 

children to regain their childhood friends, activities, and schools. 

Even more important, such a move back to the children's hometown 

7 See, e.g., sources collected in fn. 2, supra. 
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would permit the children to re-engage more regularly with their 

father Anatole, and their maternal grandmother, who was a central

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