RECEIVED
SUPREME COURT
STATE OF WASHINGTON
Apr 04, 2014, 1:51 pm
BY RONALD R. CARPENTER
CLERK

RECEIVED BY E-MAIL

NO. 89984-3

### SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

In re the Marriage of:

ELIZABETH KIM, Respondent

and

ANATOLE KIM, Petitioner

ANSWER OF RESPONDENT TO PETITION FOR REVIEW

Peter S. Lineberger Attorney for Respondent Bar No.: 24104 14930 N. Little Spokane Drive Spokane WA 99208-9569 509-869-1084

### **

### I. IDENTITY OF RESPONDENT

Respondent Elizabeth (Betsy) Kim (now Akiyama) is the prevailing party in the trial court and on appeal at Division III of the Court of Appeals, and makes her Answer requesting this Court to deny the Petition for Review.

### II. COURT OF APPEALS DECISION

The decision of the Court of Appeals is attached to the Petition for Review. We will refer to the written decision in the same manner as Petitioner, as "Slip Op" or "Decision." A cursory review if its opinion shows that the appellate review by the Court of Appeals was without error. The two parties thoroughly briefed the case to the Court of Appeals; exclusive of tables, covers, and appendices, the Petitioner's Opening Brief is 50 pages, Respondent's Brief is 48 pages, and the Reply is 20 pages. The absence of error is shown in at least three obvious general ways

First, in its unanimous decision, the Court of Appeals made a thorough review of the facts regarding relocation as found by the trial court, and concluded that substantial evidence supported each challenged finding in the trial court's findings of fact. Slip Op at 13 - 20.

Second, it determined that the trial court granted Betsy Kim permission to relocate with the three minor children to Southern California, "[a]fter considering the appropriate statutorily mandated relocation factors and entering detailed findings of fact for each . . ."

Slip Op at 6.

Third, the Court of Appeals analyzed the legal issues of the case in each category raised by the Petitioner: Relocation; Relocation — Best Interests of Children; Cultural Factors; Property Division; Child Support; and Attorney Fees. Slip Op, *passim*.

The Petition for Review might make it appear that the Court of Appeals found that the relocation would cause the children to have "extremely limited visitation with their father during the school year, and would have a largely absent single parent (Respondent) without assistance . . . ." Pet. for Rev. at 1. This statement bears little resemblance to the Decision and is purely argument of an alleged fact which was not found credible by the trial court. The remainder of the description in Section II of the Decision is the same - Petitioner's contrary factual perspective, and argument.

### III. RESTATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED FOR CONSIDERATION

A. Is the Court of Appeals Decision in *In re Marriage of Kim*, Case No. 314260-III, in conflict with any relevant decision of the Washington Supreme Court or the Washington Court of Appeals?

**B.** Does the Decision present a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or of the United States?

**C.** Does the decision involve an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Washington Supreme Court?

**D.** Were the Supreme Court to grant review of the child relocation matters raised in the Petition for Review, should the Supreme Court grant review of the Court of Appeals' decisions regarding division of property, award of attorney fees to the Respondent Betsy Kim, or any other issues raised below?

### IV. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is a dissolution of marriage case with permanent parenting plan and child relocation issues. Petitioner seeks review of the Court of Appeals

Decision regarding relocation of the minor children to Southern California. We have not found any reference in the Petition for Review to the trial court's decision about the initial parenting plan for primary child placement with Respondent Betsy Kim under RCW 26.09.002, 26.09.184, and 26.09.187(3). Therefore, primary placement of the children is not before this Court. His only references to the general parenting act are to RCW 26.09.184(3) in footnote 3 and to RCW 26.09.002, which are limited to his argument that the "bests interests of the children" override all the other factors contained in the relocation act, RCW 26.09.406 - .560.

The Petitioner's Statement of the Case (Pet. for Rev. at 5 - 12) is fraught with wholly subjective assertions which do not fairly characterize the Decision or its procedural or factual posture. The procedural state of the case is sufficiently outlined in the Decision; *see*, *esp.*, Slip Op at 2-3 and 5-6. As for the summary of facts, the Court of Appeals in its introductory summary and throughout its decision meticulously reviewed the evidence and placed several quotes from the testimony and evidence of the parties, experts, and the trial court in its opinion. It reviewed the trial court's treatment of each RCW 26.09.520 statutory factor. Slip Op at 13 - 20. The

Decision concerning questions of fact is due considerable deference, just as the appellate court defers to the trial court regarding facts supported by substantial evidence and judgments about credibility of witnesses and parties. The function of ultimate fact finding "is exclusively vested in the trial court." Edwards v. Morrison-Knudsen Co., 61 Wn.2d 593, 598, 379 P.2d 735 (1963); In re Marriage of Rich,, 80 Wn.App. 252, 259, 907 P.2d 1234 (1996); In re Marriage of Fahey, 164 Wn.App. 42, 262 P.3d 128 (2011), review denied, 173 Wn.2d 1019, 272 P.3d 850 (2012). Cf. In re Personal Restraint of Coats, 173 Wn.2d 123, 267 P.3d 324 (2011) (review under RAP 13.4(b) of "pure questions of law" does not require deference to the Court of Appeals on such questions, implying that deference is due to fact issues). In determining initial child placement and child relocation issues in this trial, the trial court rendered a parenting decision which first met the objectives of the parenting act and the criteria for establishing a permanent parenting plan under RCW 26.09.002, 26.09.004, 26.09.184, and RCW 26.09.187. CP 185 - 194. Having decided that residential placement with Respondent Betsy Kim was in the best interests of the children, the trial court then undertook the factual and legal analysis of the relocation

request with the presumption that Betsy Kim would act on her relocation request in accordance with the best interests of the children. The trial court then applied the 10 germane factors outlined in RCW 26.09.520. CP 194 - 199. See, In re Marriage of Horner, 151 Wn.2d 884, 93 P.3d 124 (2004), passim.

### V. ARGUMENT: REASONS TO DENY REVIEW IN FULL

This matter of review is governed by RAP 13.4(b):

- (b) Considerations Governing Acceptance of Review. A petition for review will be accepted by the Supreme Court only:
  - (1) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court; or
  - (2) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with another decision of the Court of Appeals; or
  - (3) If a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or of the United States is involved; or
  - (4) If the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court.

Each of these factors is addressed below in subsections V. A. through C. With the foregoing principles in mind, we turn to the Respondent's request that this Court deny review.

## A. The Decision Is Not In Conflict With Any Decision Of Another Court Of Appeals Or The Supreme Court. RAP 13.4(b)(1) and (2)

The instant case is controlled by firmly established authority from this Supreme Court and the cases from the Court of Appeals; there are no case conflicts and Petitioner never really identifies any. The intensive case analysis began with the Division I case of *In re Osborne*, 119 Wn.App. 133, 79 P.3d 465 (2003). A year later, a relocation issue was heard and decided in the Supreme Court in *In re Marriage of Horner*, 151 Wn.2d 884, 93 P.3d 124 (2004). Osborne and Horner were followed by Division III in In re Marriage of Momb, 132 Wn.App. 70, 130 P.3d 406 (2006). Anatole Kim's arguments have never come to grips with the meaning of these cases, which was summarized by this Court in Horner, which held that consideration of all of the 26.09.520 factors serves as a balancing test between the "many competing interests" in relocation cases. "Particularly important in this regard are the interests and circumstances of the relocating person." 151 Wn.2d at 894. Quoting Osborne, supra at length, the Court emphasized that the relocation act "incorporates and gives substantial weight to the traditional presumption that a fit parent will act in the best interests of her

child." Id. at 895.

This Court also noted that the lower courts' then-inconsistent applications (2003-2004) of the statute demonstrated a need for guidance from the Supreme Court. 151 Wn.2d at 892. No such inconsistency exists today.

Petitioner insists that the instant Decision creates a new standard other than that set by the statutes and cases, but he does not point to any part of the Decision or the record to substantiate the claim. This is because he cannot. The Decision thoroughly reviews the findings of fact by the trial court which follow and conform to RCW 26.09.520. Slip Op 13 - 20. The allegation that the Decision transforms the statutory rebuttable presumption into a "conclusive" presumption (Pet. For Rev. at 13) is erroneous. There is nothing in the Decision to support this strained argument. Indeed, the argument on that page shows only Petitioner's disagreement with the way the trial court found the facts as affirmed by the Court of Appeals. This is admitted in the Petition at footnote 1, at 6. This Court does not reevaluate facts of the case which have been affirmed by the Court of Appeals. *In re Marriage of Kovacs*, 121 Wn.2d 795, 810, 854 P.2d 629 (1993).

Petitioner's underlying argument is now - as it was at the Court of Appeals - that consideration of the "best interests of the children" is the prime concern in a relocation case, "trumping" all considerations of the advantages of relocation to the relocating person. The statute and the cases belie this claim. As noted earlier, the children's best interests were fully adjudicated in the first phase of the trial court's review of the evidence and its decision. This fact is so obvious that the Court of Appeals did not especially address it; it is apparent from the record itself.

Petitioner claims that "the focus [of the statutory relocation factors] is on the children" (Pet. For Rev. at 14). *Horner* contradicts this proposition. *See, Horner*, footnote 10, 151 P.3d at 895 which observes that several of the 11 factors refer to the interests and/or circumstances of the relocating person: RCW 26.09.520(2) ("Prior agreements of the parties"); (4) ("Whether either parent or a person entitled to residential time with the child is subject to limitations under RCW 26.09.191"); (5) ("The reasons of each person for seeking or opposing the relocation and the good faith of each of the parties in requesting or opposing the relocation"); (7) ("The quality of life, resources, and opportunities available to the child and to the

relocating party in the current and proposed geographic locations"); and (10) ("The financial impact and logistics of the relocation or its prevention").

The Petition presents nothing approaching a real argument that the Decision conflicts with any of the authorities dealing with the relocation act.

## B. The Decision Does Not Present A Significant Question Of Law Under The Constitution Of The State Of Washington Or Of The United States RAP13.4(b)(3)

The Petition for Review does not actually raise or address a constitutional issue. There is not a single citation to the Washington Constitution or to the federal Constitution, and the only references to any constitutional idea are at the Petition pp. 3 (statement of Issue C.) and 13 (reference to Court of Appeals Opening Brief of Appellant). Such a nonchalant approach to an allegedly "significant question of law under" our state and federal constitutions can hardly be grounds for review within the meaning of RAP 13.4(b)(3).

In any event, courts of appeals have held the relocation act to be constitutional under the criteria enunciated in the Washington and federal

line of cases identified with *Troxel v. Granville*, 530 U.S. 57, 120 S.Ct. 2054, 147 L.Ed.2d 49 (2000), and *In re Custody of Smith*, 137 Wn.2d 1, 969 P.2d 21 (1998). These cases are: *In re Osborne*, 119 Wn.App. 133, 79 P.3d 465 (2003) and *In re Marriage of Momb*, 132 Wn.App. 70, 130 P.3d 404 (2006). In its explicit approval of and extensive quotations from the *Osborne* case, the *Horner* court implicitly approved of the *Osborne* holding on the constitutional principles.

151 Wn.2d at 895.

Instead of making any plausible constitutional claim, the better part of Anatole Kim's Petition is devoted to an argumentative restatement of the facts as the Petitioner wishes the trial and appellate courts had found them.

Petition, footnote 1, *supra*.

# C. The Decision Does Not Involve An Issue Of Substantial Public Interest That Should Be Determined By The Washington Supreme Court RAP 13.4(b)(4)

The *Horner* case, 151 Wn.2d 884, *supra*, considered the proper scope and interpretation of the relocation act as one of, among other things, continuing and substantial public interest under the tests for determining

whether the case was moot, and found that it was of substantial public interest at the time. 151 Wn.2d at 891-893. It also noted that had the case not been moot, the Court would have remanded to the trial court for factual findings under RCW 26.09.520. Fn 11.

Contrary to Petitioner's characterization of the *Horner* decision at Petition page 4 (*Horner* . . . "did not involve a fully contested appeal of the underlying, critical issues. . . ), this Court held that the case was moot because the petitioner no longer wanted to relocate with the child, *not* because the case was not fully contested. The *Horner* court held that the mooted appellate decision merited Supreme Court review under that part of the test articulated in *Sorenson v. City of Bellingham*, 80 Wn.2d 547, 558, 496 P.2d 512 (1972) regarding the high quality of advocacy present in that case, which included support from *amicus curiae*. 151 Wn.2d at 893. Review of the names of the attorneys participating in *Horner* soundly confirms this assessment. Petitioner is patently mistaken.

Therefore, whether or not the issues now raised could be considered of public interest, the Petition fails to satisfy the second part of the test under RAP 13.4(b)(4) — that the issue "should be determined by the

Washington Supreme Court." It *has* been determined in *Horner*, and that case is "the gold standard" as witnessed by the fact that it has been cited with no negative treatment fifty-three times as of this writing, with 15 of those being court of appeals cases involving child relocation. This Court has cited it three times on the issue of mootness. *Horner* obviates the need for review of the parenting act as a matter of substantial public interest.

### D. If Review Is Granted, The Supreme Court Should Not Review Property or Fee Award Issues; and

Respondent's Request For Fees

### 1. Property Issues

Anatole Kim's position on the sixty percent - forty percent property division in favor of Betsy Kim is without merit. He attempts to shoe-horn the compensatory maintenance decision in the well-known case of *In re Marriage of Washburn*, 101 Wn.2d 168, 677 P.2d 152 (1984) into a boot that does not fit, namely, the division of the property of the Kims' twenty-five year marriage in which the parties had accumulated a great deal of property. Washburn involved 2 consolidated cases where the marriages were short, one spouse had foregone her professional career to support the

other, and the parties had accumulated very little or no property. The trial court and Court of Appeals rightly rejected this claim with sound reasoning.

See Slip Op at 22 - 26.

### 2. Attorney Fees Below And On This Petition

### (a) Fees Awarded By The Court Of Appeals

RCW 26.09.140 provides that "[u]pon any appeal, the appellate court may, in its discretion, order a party to pay for the cost to the other party of maintaining the appeal and attorneys' fees in addition to statutory costs." When determining whether an award of fees is appropriate in a dissolution case, an appellate court considers the parties' "relative ability to pay" and the "arguable merit of the issues raised on appeal." *In re Marriage of Leslie*, 90 Wn.App, 796, 807, 954 P.2d 330 (1998), *review denied*, 137 Wn.2d 1003 (1999); *In re Marriage of C.M.C.*, 87 Wn.App. 84, 89, 940 P.2d 669 (1997):

In the case at bar, the Court of Appeals cited to *C.M.C.*, *supra*, and awarded fees. Slip Op at 28 - 29. Having thoroughly reviewed each assignment of error by Anatole Kim and having rejected each as of little or no merit, the Court was entitled to award fees as it did. There is really nothing

to review.

### (b) Respondent's Request For Reasonable Attorney Fees And Expenses For Answer To Petition

Should this Court deny the Petition for Review, Betsy Kim should be allowed her reasonable attorney fees and expenses as provided in RAP 18.1(j), which states in pertinent part:

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